
 
 

 

METRO TRANSPORTATION ENGINEERING & CONSTRUCTION COOPERATIVE 

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS (RFQ) NO. 26-02 

MTECC CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING AND INSPECTION SERVICES (CEI) 
FOR THE PURCHASE AND INSTALLATION OF PEDESTRIAN LIGHT POLES AND 

LUMINAIRES FOR THE CITY OF COCONUT CREEK 
 

ADDENDUM NO. 2 

 
 

This Addendum revises the following sections of the solicitation documents as detailed. 
 

 (   ) Requirements and Instructions to 
Proposers 

(  ) Scope of Services 

    
 (   ) General Terms and Conditions (  ) Exhibits 
(   ) Special Terms and Conditions (  ) Federal Requirements 

 

    This Addendum includes: 
1) Pre-Submittal Conference Summary Minutes 
2) Questions and Answers No. 2 
3) Construction Plans 

 
 
 

Date Issued: December 11, 2025 
 

Deadline for Proposals Due remains 4:00 p.m. Eastern Time, December 18, 2025. 
 

 
 

Christopher Bross 
MTECC Contracting Officer 

 
 
 
 

RFQ NO. 26-02 ADDENDUM NO. 2 

NOTE: FAILURE TO ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF THIS ADDENDUM ON THE PROPOSAL 
FORM MAY BE CAUSE FOR REJECTION OF THE SUBMITTAL 
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METRO TRANSPORTATION ENGINEERING & CONSTRUCTION COOPERATIVE 

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS (RFQ) NO. 26-02 

PRE-SUBMITTAL CONFERENCE DECEMBER 4, 2025 

SUMMARY MINUTES 

The virtual Pre-Submittal Conference for Request for Qualifications (RFQ) No. 26-02 for 
Construction Engineering and Inspection Services for the purchase and installation of 
pedestrian light poles and luminaires for the City of Coconut Creek began at 11:05 a.m. on 
Thursday, December 4, 2025. The contracting agency for this procurement is the Metro 
Transportation Engineering Construction Cooperative (MTECC).  

Mr. Chris Bross began by noting that the conference is being recorded and MTECC will be 
providing a summary of minutes of the conference through the issuance of an Addendum to 
the RFQ, then read the following statement: 

ANY VERBAL STATEMENTS MADE DURING THIS CONFERENCE OR AT ANY POINT 
DURING THE PROCUREMENT PROCESS ARE NOT TO BE RELIED ON. ONLY WRITTEN 
RESPONSES FROM MTECC ARE OFFICIAL RESPONSES FOR THIS PROCUREMENT. IF 
THERE IS ANY CONFLICT BETWEEN THE CONFERENCE MINUTES AND THE 
SOLICITATION DOCUMENTS, THE SOLICITATION DOCUMENTS SHALL PREVAIL. 

Mr. Bross continued with introducing himself as the MTECC Contracting Officer and asked 
the MTECC project team and staff that were present to introduce themselves which were as 
follows:  Chritine Fanchi the Program Manager for MTECC overseeing the technical side of 
things, Oscar Nelson the Procurement Manager for the Broward MPO assisting with this 
solicitation process, Paula Prusinski the Broward MPO procurement specialist and Rebecca 
Shultz Broward MPO IT.   

Mr. Bross then continued with the following: 

The purpose of this Pre-Submittal Conference is to provide an open forum for MTECC to 
provide an overview of the RFQ requirements and the Project with the prospective Proposers. 
Prospective Proposers will not have the ability to ask verbal questions or comment during 
this Pre-Submittal Conference. All questions are to be submitted in writing in accordance 
with Section 1.6 of the RFQ by the question deadline date of December 10, 2025. 

To date, MTECC has issued addendum No. 1 responding to initial questions received and 
providing the link for this morning’s meeting. Additional questions have been received and 
will be responded to and included in an upcoming addendum. 

Mr. Bross continued with MTECC intends to award and enter into a contract with a qualified 
proposer to provide Construction Engineering and Inspection Services to MTECC for the 
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purchase and installation of light poles and luminaires for the City of Coconut Creek, as 
more fully described in the scope of services in this RFQ and that all proposers and team 
members must be FDOT pre-qualified for every major and minor work type identified in the 
scope of services. 

Continuing, Mr. Bross stated that section 1.4 of the RFQ is the schedule of events and 
discussed the following key dates: The deadline for proposals is Thursday, December 18th at 
4:00 PM with the public announcement of proposals received being that same day at roughly 
4:15 PM.   

Additionally, Mr. Bross pointed out that RFQ submittals submitted by the deadline will only 
be accepted by mail or delivery to the address listed in Section 1.8 of the RFQ. There is a 
cone of silence in effect for this procurement which means that any communication 
between any potential vendor, service provider, proposer, lobbyist, or consultant of MTECC 
is strictly prohibited. Further language regarding the cone or silence is contained in Section 
1.6.2 of the RFQ. Any revisions to the RFQ will be issued by a written addendum and will be 
posted on Demand Star and the MTECC link under the Broward MPO Website. All addenda 
are to be acknowledged on the proposal form when submitting your proposal. 

Furthermore, in Section 1.9.1 Teaming, you will find that Proposers must select between 
submitting as a Prime Consultant or a Subconsultant when responding to this solicitation. If 
submitting as a Prime Consultant, a Proposer may not participate as a Subconsultant on 
another proposal for the same solicitation. If a Proposer fails to adhere to these restrictions 
and participates in more than one proposal, then the proposal which includes the Proposer 
as a Prime Consultant shall be found nonresponsive. 

Section 1.10 Right to Reject. RFQ Submittals may be rejected if found to be conditional, 
irregular or not in conformance with the requirements and instructions of this RFQ. Please 
do not submit an RFQ Submittal with conditions. The successful proposer shall execute the 
MTECC Agreement, same as Attachment “B” to the RFQ. If a proposer desires to request a 
condition of the RFQ to be considered, including the MTECC agreement in attachment B, the 
proposer must submit the request to MTECC in writing during the questions and answers 
period as outlined in this RFQ. When submitting a condition to be considered, the proposer 
shall specifically reference the corresponding section, paragraph and page number it wishes 
to be considered changed.  Failure to follow these instructions will result in RFQ submittals 
being nonresponsive. MTECC, in its sole discretion, shall determine whether to consider the 
condition. MTECC is under no obligation to accept or consider any conditions. 

In Section 1.12 of the RFQ, the RFQ Submittal Requirements are provided.  

Section 1.12.1 lists the Required Documents. The completed required documents are to be 
submitted in a separate sealed envelope. Attachment D, FDOT required forms are mostly 
available in word format. These forms can be downloaded from the FDOT website referenced 
on the cover page of Attachment D.    

Section 1.13 describes the required format and organization of the proposals and the 
content of what will be evaluated. Section 1.14 describes the evaluation process. This 
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section includes how the proposals will be scored and ranked as well as the requirements 
of the successful proposer to provide insurance certificates and a fee package. Insurance 
requirements are outlined on pages 4 through 8 of the general terms and conditions of the 
RFQ. 

At this point the conference was turned over to Chrisine Fanchi for an overview of the 
Scope of Services. 

Ms. Fanchi proceeded to provide an overview of Scope of Services: 

The CEI (Construction Engineering and Inspection) services for Lyon’s Road Pedestrian 
Lighting  Safety Project is to enhance safety and improve visibility for pedestrians to create a 
safer and more comfortable environment for bicyclists, pedestrians, and public 
transportation use.  The new pedestrian scale lighting along the west side of Lyons Road is 
from approximately 1,200 feet south of Northwest 6th Manor to Winston Park Boulevard, 
except for Sample Road to Cullum Road, which is a private development, making the total 
project length 3.6 miles.  Ms. Fanchi added that in 2019, FDOT installed underground lighting 
infrastructure to include pull boxes and conduits to support this project. Design plans have 
been approved by the City of Coconut Creek and Broward County. The City of Coconut Creek 
will maintain all lighting following final inspection. Estimated time to start this contract is 
February and construction is estimated to start in March of 2026 with a total construction 
time of about eight (8) months to include pre and post construction activities. 

Continuing, Ms. Fanchi stated that the light poles and luminaires are being procured 
separately with the intent of having them onsite approximately in March of 2026. She stated 
that utility relocations or adjustments are to be expected and they have been accounted for 
in the design of this project. The City of Coconut Creek will be providing all public outreach 
efforts, taking any public comments during the construction timeline. 

Lastly, the FDOT workgroups included in this project were defined as follows: 7.2, 8.1, 8.2, 
9.2, 9.4, 9.4.1, 9.4.2, 10.1, 10.3, 10.4, group 11 and group 15. 

The conference was then turned back over to Mr. Bross. 

In conclusion, Mr. Bross thanked everyone in attendance and looked forward to receiving 
Submittals in response to RFQ No. 26-02. 

Mr. Bross ended the conference at 11:15 am. 
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Number Submittal 
Date 

Question 

1 11/26/2025 

 
Question: Could you please provide the estimated start date and duration for this contract? 
 
 
Answer:  The estimated date for contract award to the highest ranked Proposer based on 
successful negotiations is February 19, 2026. The duration of the contract is through completion 
of construction and close-out activities, estimated to be October 31,2026. 
 

2 11/26/2025 

 
Question: Regarding the estimated duration of the contract, have any additional days for pre-
construction and post-construction/final-package services been factored into the total estimated 
duration? 
 
 
Answer: Pre-construction will likely be from February 19 until the start of construction estimated 
to be early March 2026.  For Post Construction to final package, assume two months beyond the 
close-out activities or approximately December 31, 2026.  
 

3 11/26/2025 

 
Question: Could you please share the estimated budget for all the CEI (Construction Engineering and 
Inspection) services required? 
 
 
Answer: The MTECC approved FY 2025-26 budget includes a maximum of $275,476.00 for CEI 
services. 
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Number Submittal 
Date 

Question 

4 11/26/2025 

 
Question: Estimated CEI staff members needed to cover and report on all construction operations and 
project administration? 
 
 
Answer: One full-time Inspector staff member. Project Administrator will be expected at 5-10% 
time weekly.  Staff support for any required testing of materials. 
 

5 11/26/2025 

 
Question: Will the City be providing laboratory services for verification testing and acceptance of 
materials to be used in this project? 
 
 
Answer: City will not be providing lab/testing. CEI will be responsible for all testing and 
acceptance of materials. 
 

6 11/26/2025 

 
Question: Will the City be providing the surveying control services? 
 
 
Answer: No. Contractor to provide surveying control services per plans. 
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Number Submittal 
Date 

Question 

7 11/26/2025 

 
Question: Will the City also handle public information and community outreach specialist services? 
 
 
Answer: Yes, the City team will support public information and community outreach. 
 

8 11/26/2025 

 
Question: Which will be the Maintenance Agency? 
 
 
Answer: The roadway covers multiple jurisdictions, but the City will be responsible for the 
operations and maintenance upon completion and acceptance of construction. 
 

9 11/26/2025 

 
Question: Could you provide the Utility Work Schedule(s) for this project? 
 
 
Answer: Based on 100% Design we do not expect utility adjustments/relocations beyond some 
slight movement of preplaced utility boxes for the light poles to meet the best location for 
lighting. 
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Number Submittal 
Date 

Question 

10 12/3/2025 

 
Question: Is there a recorded Zoom and PPT presentation that was shared with the general public 
regarding this solicitation?  
 
 
Answer: Addendum No. 2 includes the summary minutes of the December 4, 2025, Pre-Submittal 
Conference conducted on Zoom. A PowerPoint presentation was not developed. 
 

11 12/3/2025 

 
Question: Is there an assigned PM that we could meet with as well to discuss the scope? 
 
 
Answer: There is a Cone of Silence in effect for this procurement. Discussions with the PM are 
not allowable. All communications are restricted and all questions must be submitted in writing, 
in accordance with the solicitation document. 
 

12 12/4/2025 

 
Question: What is the construction cost for this project? 
 
 
Answer: We are pre-ordering the light poles and fixtures with bids due by December 12, 2025.  
These will be delivered and stockpiled on City land adjacent to Lyons Road.  We are working with 
the design team to finalize the estimated construction budget for the final amount prior to the 
construction bid issuance in late January 2026.  Assume a preliminary estimate of $2,750,000 
pending final cost estimates. 
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Date 

Question 

13 12/4/2025 

 
Question: Are plans available for this project? 
 
 
Answer: Addendum No. 2 includes the plans for this project. 
 

14 12/4/2025 

 
Question: What is the estimated start date and the duration of the project? 
 
 
Answer: Please see response to items 1 and 2. 
 

15 12/4/2025 

 
Question: Are there any DBE/SBE requirements? 
 
 
Answer: There are no DBE/SBE requirements. However, MTECC encourages the utilization of 
DBE/SBE firms.   
 

16 12/5/2025 

 
Question: Can we use an 11 X 17 size format for the Organization Chart?  
 
 
Answer: An 11 X 17 size format for the Organization Chart is acceptable. The page should be 
folded over. 
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Number Submittal 
Date 

Question 

17 12/5/2025 

 
Question: For section 2.0 Personnel, are the staff licensure/certifications a part of the (10) page limit? 
 
 
Answer: These can be included as part of the resumes section for each staff member and would 
not apply to the page limit. 

18 12/5/2025 

 
Question: Are firms licenses/certifications part of the (10) page limit? 
 
 
Answer: See response to item 17. 
 

19 12/5/2025 

 
Question: Can you please provide us with the plans for this project? 
 
 
Answer: See response to item 13. 
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